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TO THE COURT OF CRIMES AGAINST STATE SECURJ1'V IN 
THE POPULAR PROVINCIAL COURT OF LA HABANA 

THE PROSECUTOR STATES: Under the protection of article 278 of 
the Law on Criminal Procedure, and considering the investigations 
completed for the Preparatory File number 59 of 2009 by the Investigation 
Division of the State Security Department in Havana, I submit said file and 
request that it be resolved in compliance with the following petitions: 

A) To have as defendant Alan. Phillip Gross,. held in preventive 
detention by virtue of a precautionary measure related to this dossier; 
that his. .address is 10812 Pebble Brook LN, Potomac M, 20854 
Mru-yiand, United States of America, and his passport number 
208021249. 

B) To strut this trial, . and to that end I explain that: 

PROVISIONAL. CONCLUSIONS: 

FIRST: That the defendant, AlallPbillip Gross, a US citizen, held in 
preventive detention by virtue of a precautionary measure, ruld owner of 

I. the company "Joint Business Development Center" (JBDC), sited in 5530 
Wisconsin Ave., Suite 1 I 15, Chevy Chase, Maryland,· United States of 
America, in an. undetelmined date prior to the month of June 2004, was 
contacted byMarcWachtenbeim --<1 person with the same nationality, 

(I.. who he knew was the director of the project known as "Cuba Development 
Initiative" of the Pan American Development FOlUldation (PADF), an 
entity receiving funds irom the United States govemment through the 

. United States Agency for International Development (USAU)), a part of 

. which funds are used to implement programs against the Cuban State, 
including among its goals to impinge On the national independence of the 
country and to· destroy the Revolution-- to bring to Cuba a package 
containirtg,among.other things, a video camera and to deliver it to Cuban 
citizen Jose Mallu¢l Collera Vento, a member of the Cuban Freemason 
Lodge. The request· was accepted by the defendant Alan Pbillip Gross, 
who arrived in Cuba 011 June 26, 2004 and did as he was told, receiving in 
exchange approxima.tely four hundred US dollars provided by the Pan 
American Development Foundation (PADF) from its own funds. 
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Dllring t?i~ stay in Cuba, until June 30 of the same year, the defendant 
:" Alan Plulhp Gross also made phone caUs to the United States of America 

t1n'ough a cell phone. 

In the firEt . montha of the year 2007, Oil <m undetermined date, the 
defendant Alan Ph~llip Groi~ ~V'li: ~g;iill oontacted in the Un,t,,,1 Slul.:~ by 

l/. Marc. Wachtenhelm, who stilI held the same position with the Pan 
~mencan Development Foundation (P ADF) and that this time instructed 
?lm to . pur?hase state-of-the-art communication technology for its 

S. pmht:oll~ucGtlOn III ChUba,. a request ~eadthilY accepted by the defendant Alan 
• I Ip ross; w o,as an expert 111 e matter and in order to accomplish 

hiS task, purchased.a "Smart" cell phone with a "T·MobiIe" card and 
service, a "DELL" laptop, and a 9201 Model BGAN satellite connection 
equipment, which that year was just begimling to have coverage in our 
e~oerl'lphk:al ar~allnrl. thl'lt l'lllows lnt~m~t IH~C",f'.RR thrr\llgh qllt"l1it,,~ "f thp 

Inmarsatoperator, provides solutions to mobile services worldwide and is 
appropriate to easily and swiftly establish small- filld middle-size wireless 
networks to exchange emails, data files and video, while remaining 
practically undetectable; for this action, the defendant received from Marc 
Wachtenheim the amount of fifty-five hundred US dollars ($5500.00) 
provided by the Pmi American Development Foundation (PADF) from its 
own funds. 

(9. In the same year 2007, the defendant Alan Phillip Gross prepared for the 
Pan American Development Foundation (PADF) a project he called 
"Information and Communications Technology for Cuba: A Pilot Project" 
where, in addition to the technical aspects, he introduced a program with a 
fully political content, aimed at providing Internet uccess to those he culled 
"pro democracy groups" using such satellite communications means as the 
BGAN system that. he planned to bring into Cuba through multiple 
channels like tourism, humanitarian missions and diplomatic pouches and 
that,according to his plan, with these means he would break the "blockade 
Oil tile access to infol"11~ati{m I' fllld the" blockade and close sUI"1N)illal~ee on 
communications among the pro democracy groups" in Cuba. This project 
he submitted to J\{a:I'C Wachtenheim, who did not accept it; then, the 
defendant stored the information contained in the Project in a Kingston 
thwnh drive of his property. 

-~.I'\, 
. :t::1n the year 2008, when the defendant Alan Phillip Gross learned that"t"'" '~\ 

. . Development Alternatjve Inc: (DAI), with headq.uarlers in Wisconsin Av ~~)'(":*' \, 
Chevy Chase, Marylli11d, United States of America, a contractor of . ..;>~,<,,:~~::JI" 
Agl;lncy for Intern;;ttional Development (DSArD), had rei ~ / I~~?~"~>;:,,?/ 
notification for the elaboration and implementation of aSUbve~e p .. '~7 

" •• "iiI •• " .. ~.:...' ~~t--
''''\ .. : 

.... , 
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against Cuba known as the "Cuba Democraq Program·· --aimed at 
assaulting national independencc and promoting the destruction of the 
Cuban Revolution~and that it had been allocated a large amount of 

'6, money, he contacted Am~rican ~'itizen .John McCarthy, a se~li0r. 
development expert workmg With the Development Alternattve::; 
Incorporated,. Inc. (DAI) in order to get involved in the Project with the 
purpose of receiving the fees paid for its implementation ifhe was retained. 

This program ofthe Development Alternative Inc. (DAI) was sponsored by 
the US Agency for Intemational Development (USAID), an institution 

q. whose actions correspond to the interests of the US government special 
services albeit under the appearance of development aid, and that includes 
among its goals the ovel1:lrrowing of the Cuban Revolution; to this end it 
finances a set of programs and subsidizes a wide range of orgatlizations and 
centers operating agahlst Cuba whieh that same year 2008, through the 
Office of the Assistllnt Manager for Latin America and the Caribbean 
issued a call to those interested lllthe elaboration of projects aimed at 
supporting "the programs that may enhance the scope and impact of an 
independent civil society in Cuba and, subsequently, accelerate a peaceful 
transition to democracy" on the legal basis of section 109 and section 202 
of the Cuban Freedom atld Democratic Solidarity Act of 1996 (The Helms­
Hurton ACt). andsub:;t:I.:L!UU IS) uf ~,,""L;u" 1705 of tho Cub= Democrllcy 
Act of 1992 (The Torricelli Act), thus showing the aggressive atld intrusive 
nature of these programs to which large sums of money have been 
allocated, that from the year 1996 to 2008 were in the excess of sixty-five 
million dollars granted to over 25 US organizations with the purpose of 
supporting what they describe as a "transition to democracy in Cuba ", 
meant to. impinge on the independence of the Cuban nation and to destroy 
the Revolution. 

.. . 

10, Through the materialization of these plans, the US Agency for International 
Development (USAID) intended to create the necessary conditions to 
massively dissemil1ate distorted h1fbrmation, undetected by the Cuban 
State, that would primarily target certain segments of society such as young 
and black people, women at1d what they consider marginal segments, in 
order to promote actions of civil disobedience, social disturbances and riots 
which would enable them. to portray an image of social atld political chaos 
in our country, thus facilitating the actions of their government against our 
homelatld. 
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Phillip Gross submitted to the Development Alternative Inc. (DAr) 
references on his personal performance and a curriculum vitae describing 
his personal experience and that of his company in the use of modern 
communications technology .in a number of countries, leading to his 
approval. Later, on October 30, 2008, given the clandestine nature of the 
project to be implemented in Cuha, he signed a confidentiality and non­
disclosure contract with Samuel L. Williams, manager of the Development 
Altemative Inc. (DAl), providing the obligation of both men to avoid 
disclosure of its content. 

/;;... The Project, elaborated by the abovementioned Phillip Gross and named 
by him "For the Island, " basically consisted in using high fidelity and 
satellite transmission cell phones, wireless and portable devices to facilitate 
the transmissio11 .of . "nonrestricted" information and communications 
among those he called "democratic activists" and "others involved" since 
in this way "these<communications could not be monitored, .. with the aim 
of "contributing fbthe promotion ofajust and democratic government" in 
Cuba through the implementation of the ideas previously presented to 
Marc Wachtenbehn that coincided with the requirements of the ongoing 
"Program" oithe Development Altemative Inc. (DAl). 

In tile documerttlil he, elaborated for said Project, the defendant Alan Phillip 
Gross repo;:atedlyexpressed his intentions and those of his retainers to 
contribute to a ''pOi::lcoj'lI/lransmon m Cuba," tantam.ount to the de3truotl0n 
of the Cuban goverinnent and its social project and to an assault on the 
independence and sovereignty of Cuba, tor which he created a Website in 
Internet that he designed and hosted in Google, to operate for one year and 
expire on February 12, 2010, named "For the IslandNet" which he 
configured with an encyclopeclia, emails and video among other 
possibilities, and inwhose openinfl page he added to the name the phrase 
"ifnot now, when" a clear incitement to subversion against the political, 
economic and social order in Cuba. 

Subsequently, the defendant Alan Phillip Gross, using the funds provided 
by the Development Altemative Inc. (DAI) in excess of sixty thousand US 
dollars, bought 63 equipment and their state-of-the·art tec1mology 
accessories to introduce them inCtlba little by little and use them in the 
configuration of three networks with satellite aeeess to Internet in the '" 
westem, eentral and eastern regions of the eountry, specifically in the cities ... ,,,''''"'\ 
of Havana, Camagiley and Santiago de Cuba. To that end, he contacte\l~.if);.C\, "\. 
New York, United States, lJS citizen Willhuus Rccant, a mem~:9i;~ .>!,,"'~1"\, 
Jewish o:gani~at.ion.bas~d in t1~at country,}o whom, ,~voidi~~.~~~;':;~:<;;':" . "" •. , 
related hiS partiCipatIOn In a project named For Cuba an4J¥o~~~." "\.:9~t~,,,' 

~ .~:~~).,~ .t" \ 1Ii1' ' 
\ "~~(: ..:f~~M~ " 

~.\ "~ 
\ .... "'~ 

\" .... ~~'~ ... 
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received the recommendation to contact Cuban CItIzen William Miller 
Espinosa, a member of the Jewish community in Cuba. It was also from 
this person that the defcndant learned of Jewish groups traveling to Cuba 
often, which suggested to him the idea of introducing the equipment in the 
country whenever possible through the visitors from the Jewish 
community. For this purpose, the defendant appealed to the US Treasury 
Department's OtIice of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) to apply for a 
travel license and to the US Department of Commerce to apply tor an 
equipment export license in which he declared the great discretion of his 
contracts for Cuba and that he would be extremely cautious to avoid any 
risk as well as the fact that he would carry out all of his work with "non 
governmental" groups, thus receiving the corresponding licenses to travel 
to our country. 

So :the defendant Alan Phillip Gross, in order to materialize the plans of 
the. United States. government to control the destiny of Cuba to the 
detriment of its national independ~nce, made his first trip to the Island 
nation. on M~ch ~O, 2009, bringing with him all the equipment and the 
necessary means.of information and communication to configure a 
netlvork, that he matlllged to introdll(',e in th~ r.onntry I1nr1~tl".(~t~d, find thl"n 
contacted the abovementioned WiUiilm Miller Espinosa at the synagogue 
of the Bebre"" Community in Havana, based in calle 1 No. 263 esquina a 
13, Flazade.la Revoluci6n municipality, where he took the equipment and 
connected itusirtga BOAN, whidi, enabled him to configure a satellite 
communication network, telling Miller Espinosa that his only intention 
was. "to improve communications among the Jewish communities, ,. thus 
covering up tile tnle objectives of the Development Alternatives Inc.'s 
program sponsored by the US Agency for International Development 
(USAlD), and establishing communications through the installed system 
with variouspeopIe, including John Hel~zog, subcontracting manager with 
the Development Alternatives Inc. 

During this stay in Cuba, the detendant Alan Phillip Gross used his time 
to train Jeirol\1ontaigne Babani and Fernando Cheong Cisnar, 
members ofthe)ewish eOinmunity in Havana, in the use ofthe equipment, 
but without explaining his objectives to them, and tested the range of the 
connection in the surroundings of the institution, adding to the network 
various points of wireless access indifferent places of the synagogue that. 
would allow the connection to Internet of thc highest possible number of ",-"",.\ 
people visiting thecOimnunity, members or not, so that the modern means ,/,"< \ 
of satellite communications could be used by the real targets of ,.e"<,:;;~;\\'\; 
"program", that is, the members of the local counterrevolution..,.;..-!. -'<>~:> 

q.¢ l" ,i-' ".t, '".. ..;1,:;1 
.(;1;';;' 1':1.,/', •. '"/ " ,1';-';-\;: ,::~:';. 

'\ 
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As it was planned, on his rcturn to thc United States on April 6, 2009, the 
defendant Alan Phillip Gross made a report of the results of his actions in 
Cuba to John Herzog, the person in charge of receiving his reports after 
"Y"ry llip II" '11"<1,,, Lv eu!.>", t1.,,[ ",bu :><; •• "J ,,~ wlitt<;11 <;vid<;",;.<; fv. hi111 tv 

/1, collect his payment for the implementation of the "Project". 

In said. report, the defendant Alan Phillip Gross related to John Herzog 
how he had created the Website For the Island.Net in order to access 
Internet and how he had recommended the use of this website instead of the 

18'" ' Gmail, Yahoo and· Hotmail accounts, that would basically allow him to 
trace their use, and. had. warned against the utilization of the users' last 
names in the addresSes they created for the electronic transmissions. 

To continue with the introduction in Cuba of the satellite means of 
r-i.communicationand to prevent the Customs authorities from suspecting, 

discovering and frustrating his ongoing plans, the defendant Alan Phillip 
Gross proceededtq contact, in the United States, Suzanne Andisman, a 
member of the US Jewish community traveling to Cuba with a religious 
group and asked her to bring in her luggage some communication 
equipment, a request that she accepted unaware of the defendant's plans. 
He then traveled to Havana on April 25, 2009, bringing with him a BGAN 
satellite terminal and a laptop while Suzanne Andisman traveled on April 
26,.2009 with the rest of the equipment required to set up a network. Both 
entered the country by the Jose MartiInternational Airport in Havana and 
agreed to meet .at the Parque Central Hotel in Havana where the defendant 
Alan Phillip Gross.collected the equipment she had brought. 

The defendant All"1.nPhillip Gross then traveled with the equipment to 
Santiago de Cuba where he made contact with Eugenia Farin Levy, a 
leader of the. Hebrew C()ngregation, to whom he delivered the means, 

.. -)' 'U pr®tlitU.din.gith .. e). rw. er.e "a d.onationtfiJ improllf commllnicationJ among the 
if 'Jewish communiti(is. ,. while avoiding to declare his true intentions, and 

proceeded to instaU·them in the premises of the Hebrew community in that 
city, at calle Corona No. 253, el Habana y Maceo, where he unsuccessfully 
tried to establish communicati()ns· since the BGAN connectivity failed. He 
then decided to. leave the equipment there and return to the capital of the 
country from where he would travel back to the United States of America 
on May 4,2009. 

At the end of this trip, . the same as on the previous one, the defendant Alan ",,,,p,,\ 
Phillip Gross sent to his sponsors II detailed report of his activities in Cu .~. \ 
emphasizing, among other things, the positions of responsibilit ,tlh{ 'Jl.,\. 

~#"'fo~ ~~. ";::;<l 
Sf"" .. \~ ""'~I~/~' , ,. 

\

• '" ~{::},,",,' I)" .c". , 
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person he met in Santiago de Cuba In her job, the population of the 
province and its distribution. 

For his third trip to Cuba, intended to introduce information and 
communication equipment and means, the defendant Alan Phillip Gross 
contacted from his United States ofjlces US citizen Richard Klein, also a 
member of a Jewish community that would be traveling to Cuba with other 
members of his congregation, and asked him to bring in his luggage some 
means of communication, a request Richard Klein accepted, unaware of 
the defendant's intentions, thus traveling to Cuba with the abovementioned 
equipment on June 4, 2009, while the defendant Alan Phillip Gross 
traveled on the same date but in a different flight, thus avoiding to draw 
attention from the Customs altthorities for repeatedly bringing equipment 
into the country through the Jose Marti International Airport in Havana. 

Once in the national ten'itory, the defendant Alan Phillip Gross collected 
the infonnation an4 communications means brought by Richard Klein, 
which would enable him to configure another communications network 
similar to the other two, with satellite connection, since it also included in 
its components a BGAN terminal, and with this equipment he drove to 
CamagUey where he contacted David Pernas Levy, president of the 
Hebrew Community in the province, whom he told that this equipment was 

.. a donation of thtl US J<::wi~h c.:ulIlllluuily fO! Ult: illlPruv 1;:1ll1;:11l uf 
communications among the Jewish communities in Cuba, once again 
concealing his t:nieintentions and proceeding to install the equipment at the 
headquarters ofsaidotganization in calle Andres Lopez Sanchez No. 365, 
entre Joaquin de AgUero and Capdevila, Camaguey, which made it possible 
for him to configure a wireless network of satellite communication through 
Internet and to conduct some connection tests until he was able to establish 

. communication outside the country. Then, he returned to the capital and 
from there to the United States on June 18, 2009. 

As previously accorded, in order to be paid for his work, the defendant 
Alan Pbillip (}rOss. proceeded to.claborate for his sponsors of the 
Development· Alternative Inc. (DM) a detailed report describing the 
. measures taken to transfer all of the equipment to the dties of Santiago de 
Cuba and Camaguey undetected by the Cuban authorities, characterizing 
his work as very risky and warning them that the detection by Cuban 
officials of the communications network he was establishing "would lead 
to the confiscation of the equipment and the arrest of its users, " among ",:.<i""'\. 
other things. ~. \ 

~I \. '\~ 
/<:' ",-, '\~t\ ", .. 

~~~~~ .. '." '~):::.>~;~, .~{. ," . ,~¢"~ 
, .'p",~ t"",'I!' ·r>r:!', '"tP~ 

;# /J ,,~, " ' ." 
If.'." ~:'ltt1J., ':;t1.'~'1'~.' :..( ."'>\~:j<' , ,. , 
~ ~"J'" , .. 1. . ..,':IIl. ':;;"" +-.;.....-
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At '2-a~i~ne, in an undeterrn.ined date, and insisting on his objective to 
create clandestine conditions to operate freely in Cuba, the defendant Alan 
Phillip Gross drafted a document, which he stored in his Kingston thumb 
drive, dated in June 2009 and coded together with others like "Joint9," and 
named it "How to communicate safely in repressive environments" 
explaining that "it was addressed to political activists operating in non 
permissive environments and to those supporting their work, .. where he 
explained a methodology to apply tor transmission, communication or 
reception of subversive materials using such modem means of information 
and communications as mobile phones, digital cameras, computers, thumb 
drivcs, email.Wcbsites.IPVolumes.bl(lggsandlntemetcafc:>.Je~(;ribing 
both the personal measures to be taken by the users and the most reliable 
software or technical means, and concluding that he had done this work 
bascd on thc collection of materials on the subject and 011 hi" "pl!rsunal 
experience and that of other colleGj"rues. " 

That extensive material produced by the defendant Alan Phillip Gross 
corresponds to thetechnoloey hI.': rllr~hasnrl for th ... implnm",nt~tion of his 
proJect as well as to the measures he applied to set up the means introduced 
in Cuba. 

SUbsequently;theclefendant AlauPhillip Gross traveled to Cuba on two 
other occasioris ··from July 22 to 31 and from November 24, 2009 to the 
day he WaS taken into custody·· and visited the capital of the country and 

. th¢ • cities of' Cari1ll,£;uey and Santiago de Cuba, where he had put in the 
... equipment required to accomplish his objectives, with the intent of 

choosli,g ~ild 'ti'alnlngtlle pMpit( thal wuuld uplilrale such means, who 
.wouldalso beiocharge of their adequate preservation in compliance with 
.the indications set forth in his contract with the Development Alternative 
Inc. (DAl) and produced at the end of every trip the corresponding report in 
order to' ensure his payment, whieh at the end would amount to two­
hundred and fifty eight thousand two·hundred and seventy-four US dollars 
(258,274.00). 

". J.~ .. . While AlanJ;'bmipGross was in the United States of America, in the 
month of Novetb:her 2009, he received a phone call from US citizen Akran 
Elias, a former Gbmd Master of the Masonic Lodge in Washington 
characterized by his notorious conduct against the po litical system in Cuba, 
who was contacting; him following a recommendation of John McCarthy, 
since he was. interested in the "Cuba Democracv Prollram" in which the 
defendant Ala.n Phillip Gross was involved, and agreed to meet and talk in 
a cafe near their offices. 

".1'; 
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fitring the abovementioned meeting, Akra~l!:lias in~uircd on the 
possibility to expand the actions in which the dc~endant wa~ Involved to the 
Cuban Freemason Lodges and agreed to meet In Havana In the month of 
December 2009, when Akran Elias would visit Cuba to continue dealing 
with this issue. 

On December 2, 2009, while the defendant Alan Phillip Gross and Akran 
Elias were in Havana, they agreed to meet, as previously arranged, at the 
Hotel Nacional de Cuba, in Havan!l, where they took up again the idea 
discussed in WaShington to expand the Project, but using this time 
institutions of the Cuban Freemasonry. Then, they agreed to meet again to 
finalize the details but could not do so because on the night of December 3, 
2009 the defendant Alan .Phillip Gross was taken into custody by the 
Cuban authorities who confiscated to him two thumb drives, one Kingston 
and the other a .Micro Center, where he had stored a good part of the 
materials that he. Iised against the Cuban State. 

Every time the defendant Alan Phillip Gross traveled to Cuba to introduce 
information and communications equipment, to configure networks, to 
choose or train people and to check the situation of the equipment, he did 
so with a tourist visa and at the endot" every trip he made reports to his 
sponsors that allowed him to coIlecttwenty~five thousand US dollars for 

1-\<elich trip ($25,000.00). This proves the conspiratorial nature of his covert 
actions aimed at establishing an infrastructure that, through this almost 
undetectable sateliitecommunicatioIls. system, would permit him to work 
towards the achievement .of the United States government objective of 
Ullderminingandeventually destroying Cuba's economic, political and 
social order and consequently the independence of the State . 

. -:'Jf .After thedefendant.Alan Phillip Gross was taken into custody, a search 
q\' was conducted of the three facilities where he had set up the equipment 

introduced in Cuba .. There, the. oftlcials in charge of the . investigation 
seized~ee .. BGAN satellite communications ternlinals --Hughes make, 
Model 9201 c->with their cards, connection cables and batteries; three 
laptops -one Mac Book .and two Apple--with their feeding cables and 
transformers; three Routers -one Workgroup Switch Linksys, one Model 

.~df;!}f'l LinksysCisc() with its feeding cable and transformer, Model LS120V- .,,1'1'- " 
15ALE, and one Ruckus wireless, Model Zone Director 1000 with. its cablp<:~:;q,~·\. 
and transformer; 13 Blackberry phones, Model 8320, WIth ~,J~;.~,'i'}.\ 
corr. espon. d. ing. h. an. de free ca .. bles, earphones and battery chargers ..tl!i ;';'.. . .. \\,.( :;, .. ? ~"" # ~,II .!:;~"I';!i" 
cards and So Ill. icr .. o. ,in addition to their battery chargers.; 6 'f'ester\,~i'hlf. I .• ,f" 

external hard drives with their connection cables; 2 POl"Yfo1ll.( . 
conference internal communicators; 2 Logitech Web Catlleras;\(jne ·'Rast'Jl1. 

\" .. ,.<-"','</! 
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Saack FrequencY1V10dulator; 14 wireless transmitters or Ruckus access 
points, aU with theirrespectivenetwork, feeding and transfo~er c~bles; 10 
Apple. Ipods;aClarisys Internet . protocol telephone WIth Its USB 
cdnnectioncable.;one Kingston thumb drive of two Gb capacity; one 
Magic IackModemwithUSBconn:ection; one pair of Logitech earphones 
with integratedJ.1licrophone; one Clarisys phone and the telephone line 
202-280-7647;.olle Cisco router with its cable and transformer; one 
Linksys wireless Switch with its cable and transformer; a Cisco Linksys 
router with its cable and transformer; a mobile phone charger with its 
connection .cable;one Linksys Switch with its cable and transformer; one 
Logitech IlloIise;()ne Eddier bauer green compass; one pair of Logitech 
earphones with. integrated microphone and connectors; one Coming Data 
CP 0520 transformer with a Belkin F5U 404-BLK connection device and 
four USB ports;. one Clarisys Ip telephone with its connecting cable; 6 
current adaptors; 4 Wonpro current adaptors; 2 Kingston thumb drives; one 
Router with its cable and transformer; and, one adapting cable with two 
USB ports in white color. 

The defendant in custody Alan Phillip Gross was born in New York, 
United State" of America. He is the son of Fred and Evelyn. He is a 61 
years old university graduate, married, and his address is 10812 Pebble 
Brook LN, PotoIllacM, Maryland{MD) 20854. His passport number is 
208021.249 .• Hegr:aduated with aBS in Sociology and Health from the 
University of Mary'land, Later, he obtained a Master's degree in Social 
Work from the Virginia Commonwealth University School of Social Work, 
where he has also worked as an adjunct professor. He was a member of the 
Bethesda JeWish Federation in Maryland and of the BBYO. He was a 
seniorpartnerofthe Robert R. Nathan Associates, Inc. in Washington, DC, 
from. 1987 to 1991; an executive director of the APGross & Company, Inc., 
in Potomac, Marylat}d, from 1991 to 200 1; and a provisional vice president 
and chief of operations of the International Division for Development of 
the MWH Americas, Inc., in Washington, 2008. At the time of the events 
described, he was an executive director and senior partner of the Joint 
Business Devel6pn1ent Center in 5530 Wisconsin Ave., Suite 1115, Chevy 
Chase, Maryland, United States of America. He has worked in over 50 
c()untries of .Africa, Europe, Asia and Latin America. In the 19908, after the 
demise of socialisIll in East Europe, he was hired by various firms, 
companies and Non Governmental Organizations to conduct feasibility and., .• ,'" 
trade studies as ""elIas projects aimed at exporting to and setting uP .. i!}'"'·'" '; 
these countries the capitalist way of life. . "."~,,,,~;;:! .. (\:.. ',. 

~
'.i'~"" i~·.,'".,·~. /h;"'" " 

The defendant has set up the VSAT· cOlTlmunications s .... e~ 1@~i"jC,.~;"'· . ",) 
government under contract for various institutions that rec ·ve ~ .. ",. >'1.'1~· "'''' 

" .O.r / \ "",..,'" 
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the US Agency for International Development (USAID) such as "Creative 
Relief' in countries like Iraq, Afghanistan, and Pakistan, ,md sold these 
communications systems to military units of the US Army National Guard 
some of which have been involved in missions in the abovementioned 
countries. He has also been subcontracted in numerous occasions by 
companies that receive fWlds directly from the US Agency for International 
Development and on one occasion he was directly hired by said agency to 
conduct a commercial feasibility study On the Israeli-Palestinian border. 

During the investigation process, the defendant's position was one of 
justification.andievasion concerning the developments investigated while 
on the other hand he showed repentance for his actions arguing that he 
became involved msuch activities out of need for money and recognized 
that he was used by the executives of the company that hired him, since had 
he been aware of the difficulties he might face he would not have accepted 
to .come to Cuba. There is no record of the defendant being sentenced 
before by an.y Cou.rtin the Republic of Cuba. 

SECOND: Thes.e activities constitute a crime of Actions against the 
Independence or the Territorial Integrity of the State as stipulated in 
and pWlishable according to article 91 of the Penal Code. 

THIRD: Accordil1gto the provision in article 18.1.2. a) of the Penal Code, 
the defendant Alan Phillip Gross is liable to punishment as the AUTHOR 
of the crime of Actions against the Independence or the Territor·jal 
Integrity oUhe State that he committed by himself. 

FOURTH: An aggravating circumstance concurs <md should be noticed 
concerning the. criminal responsibility provided for in article 53, subsection 
b), since the. defendant acted with a profit motive, and article 17.2.2, both 
of them reflected in the Penal Code. 

FIFTH: The penalty that should be imposed to the defendant Alan Phillip 
Gross is a 20cyear prison sentence, and additionally those sentences 
pro~id~d for in the Penal Code articles 37.L2 consisting in the suspension 
ofh1s fights and43.1.2 related to the forfeiture of the goods seized and that 
are relevant to the crimirial activities he developed. 

CIVlLRESPONS1BILITY: It cannot be demMded in this case because 
it does not stem from the penal responsibility. .. . ....... . 

IN ADDITION: The evidence thattheProsecuii~~ int~tifitQ:ll !t~:rit&ke 
its case at the trial is indicated in the followino se6tions~"r'1!~d8iL;""" " 

e ' -",> :·:l.0.,H ,r',r:, I'f:, 
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A) The defendant's statement ifhe agreed to make it. 
B) Documentary evidence consisting of; 

VOLUME I -r 0 ~ (Kx,VI"-"-''LC> \..01,1-\ i0""II:I'S 

• Pages 05 to 07. Minutes on the seizure from William Miller Espinosa, at 
the Council of the Hebrew Community of Cuba in Havana, of part of 
the means of (lommunications introduced in Cuba by the defendant. 

• Pages 08. Minutes on the arrest of the defendant registering the date. 
time, place and motive bf arrest. 

• Pages 010 to 014. Minutes on the seizure of goods obtained during a 
personal .searchof the defendant Alan. Phillip Gross in the night of 
December 3, 2009, the date of his arrest, consisting ot~ among others, 
two thumb drives-'-{)ne Kingston and one Micro Center-which were 
latersub!'liftedtoanalysis flS well as other documents of interest. 

• Pages 024 to025. Minutes. on the seizure from Eugenia Farin Levy, at 
the Council of the Hebrew community of Cuba in Santiago de Cuba of 
part of the means of communications introduced in Cuba by the 
defendant. . 

• Pages 026 til 02$. MinutesOi1 the seizure from the witness David Pemas 
Levy of part of the equipmelltint'roduced by the defendant and set up in 
the Council of the Hebrew Community in the city of Camagiiey . 

•• Pages 049 to 0.52. Docunlent reSUlting from the reading of passport 
2086212490wn,edby the defendant Alan Phillip Gross, registering his 
entries to and exits from Ollrcountry and other countries as well. 

• Page 053. Accl,lsation Minutes of the defendant Alan Phillip Gross 
where he was initially charged for the introduction of certain means in 
.our country in violation of the legal provisions in force. 

• Page. 066. Certification issued hy the senior desk clerk of the Hotel 
. '. Presidente .. listing every time the defendant registered in that hotel 

during the yelill' 2009. 
" J;>age 1l3 .. C:;eJC(:i:J:"ication of·the defendant Alan Phillip Gross's Criminal 

Records provii\.gthat he has never been sentenced in a Cuban court. 
• . Page 142. Certification issued by lawyer Cristina G. Martinez, Legal 

Adviser of the Car rent agency Cubsear in Havana stating the occasion 
when the ·defendant rented a.car from that agency at the Hotel 
Presidenteanqretumed it in Santiago de Cuba. '"' 

• Page144. Certifi~ation issued by the a~commodation .mru:ager Of.tlIlhce/, .•. ,.; 
Hotel Raquel· testIfymg. to the defendant· s accommodatIon In room'fr~:':<'\. \,~. .. 
of that hotel from June 26 to 30, 2004· .. ,/"1~~;", "~1~'~.,,~·::;:. 

~f"'" ~~'>"'''' ~',' ~ ., , •• ~ '" 
~ # "":\;~~".;'lii#""' ., 
\ ., 

\, 
' .. 

:!" 
'\ .,."I~:" 
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• Pages 144 to 147. Certification issued by the chief derk .of t~e Hotd 
Melia Cohiba testifying to thc defendant's accommodatIon 111 room 
1301 of the hotel from March 30 to April 3. 2009. 

• Page 153. Certification issued by the Assistant Director General of the 
Hotel Melia Santiago testifying to the defendant's accommodation in 
that hotel fromApdl30to May 3, 2009. 

• Pages 161 to 165. Response from the offices of the Council of Ministers 
Legal Department certifying the Decree 269 of 2009 as a legal 
instrument regulating "the Special Radio Communications Services." 

• Page 167. Certit1cation issued by Carlos Martinez Albuome, Director of 
the Control and Supervision Agency of the Ministry of Information and 
Communications, certifYing that this entity never received any request 
from the defendant Alan Phillip Gross to establish satellite 
communications.stations in Cuba. 

• Page 182 .. Minutes on the g·eizure from William Miller Espinosa of other 
means delivered by the defendant Alan Phillip Gross to the synagogue 
in Havana. . 

• Pages 181 to 254. Five dOC\lments obtained from the Kingston thumb 
drive confiscated to the defendant the day of his arrest, and their 
certified translation by the EST!. (Center for Translation and 
Interpreting) 

VOLUME II 

• Pages 258 to 267. Minutes orithe inspection of the Kingston thumb 
drive confiscated to the defendant revealing documents relevant to the 
process that were shown to the defendant Alan Phillip Gross. 

• "pages 278 tl) 280. Certification issued by Gerardo Gomez Parets. 
Director of Investigations at the Office of Infomlation Networks 
Control, describing the fInding in Internet of the JBDC company owned 
by the defendantAlan Phillip Gross. 

• Pages 282 to 287. Document from the Division of Information and 
Propaganda of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs locating a speech with an 
intrusive content produced by USAID official Adolfo A. Franco and 
published in Iritemet, as well as its full text. 

• Pages 289 to 297. CertifIcation issued by the Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs locating the Internet websites of DAI and US AID, the content.,,··, 
of the programs fostered by both entities and the subversive •. ,lt1:a'";"i 
intrusive nature of that agency of the United States feder\!1,g ~""<"," "'ifi,t,;" ... l!;, 
against Cuba. (",'r' p. • e.l" 

• Pages 299 to 302. Response from the Office of Inforfuatioll r, .• ,· .. Ii'4'~ .. ~: ~~~ 
Security in the same terms as the previous document. \ "!l. l; 

\. 
I 

':: ",(,,'/'1 
!,~, ~.;'i' 
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• Pages 337 to 341. Certification issued by Maribel Simon Lauzan, Legal 
Director of the General Customs of the Republic, on the procedure 
required to import BGAN satellite communications equipment. 

• Page 343. Certification issued by the Director of the Gran Hotel in 
Santiago de Cuba, where the defendant accommodated in room 315 
from June 7 to 11, 2009 and in room 317 from July 26 to 28 of the 
same year. 

• Page 345, Certification issued bY the Director of Casa Granda Hotel in 
Sandagode Cuha, where the defendant accommodated in room 215 
from June lito 15, 2009 and in room 309 from July 24 to 26 of the 
same year. 

• Page 355. Certification from the Chief of the Legal Division in the 
Department of Immigration, testifying to the entries to and exits from 
the country of <;itizen Akran Elias between the years 2001 and 2009. 

• Page 357. Certification from the Chief of the Legal Division in the 
DepartmeIlt of Immigration, testifying to the entries to and exits from 
the country of citizen Curtis Winsor between the years 2000 and 2009, a 
former GrandMaster who expected to carry out a similar actyivity in 
Cuban Masonic instirutions. 

• Page 359. Certification tram the Chief of the Legal Division of the 
Department of Ill1migration, testifying to the entry to and exit from the 
COtmtry;· OIl April 26 and 3() of 2009, respectively, of citizen Suzmme 
Andisman who introduced in the country the means provided by the 
defendant. 

• Page 361. Certification from the Chief of the Legal Division of the 
Department of Immigration, testifying to the entries to and exits from 
the cotmtry,of the citizen Marc Wachtenheim, Director of the PADF 
program .and opposed to the Cuban Revolution, between the years 2002 
and 2009. 

.• Page 363~Getrrficatibn from the Chief of the Legal Division of the 
Department of Immigration, testifying to the entries to altd exits from 
the country,· of the citizen Richard Klein, who upon request of the 
defendant Alan Pl;lillip Gross introduced means to the country between 
the years 2000.und 2009. 

• Pages 370 to· 434. Breakdown of the docu,mel)ts of Investigation File 
351 of 2003 f~bIll the Investigation Division of the State Security 
Department in Havana City that were detected and confiscated to US 
citizen Curtis Wilson on March 28, 2001, as he tried to take them out of 
the country and. to the United States. 111ese documents, elaborated by 
the citizen Hector Maceda Gutierrez, tried in court and sentenced in said 
trial, have a marked counterrevolutionary content. 
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• Pages 668 to 751. Documents obtained from the hardwure and their 
certified translations into Spanish by the ESTL 

• Pages 752 to 759. License issued by the US government Treasury 
Department to the defemhmt Alan Phillip Gross and its certified 
translation into Spanish by the ESTI. 

VOLUME IV 

• Pages 767 to 798. Mi~utes on the return to the defendant Alan Phillip 
Gross of personal belongings irrelevant to the ongoing criminal process. 

VOLUME V 

• Pages 1132 tp 1313. Contains the US Agency for International 
Developml;:ntCuba Program for the year 2008 in English and its 

. certified translation into Spanish by the ESTL This document exposes 
the entire Program of this federal agency aimed at the removal of the 
Cuban Socialist State as reflected in the Constitution. 

• Page 1346. Personal record of the citizen John McCarthy, identified as 
Director of the Cuba Program in DAl, the company contracted by the 
USAID to implement a subversive project against Cuba, 

• Pages 1347 to 1348. Personal record of the citizen Marc Wachtenheim, 
identified as Director of the Cuba Program in the Pan American 
Development Foundation (P ADF) and closely linked to the defendant 
Alan Phillip Gross who did some. services to him. 

• Pages 1349 to 1350, Personal record of the citizen Curtis Winsor, 
identified. as a person linl<ed to the defendant Alan Phillip Gross. He 
made many trips to Cuba and maintained a position markedly opposed 
to the Cuban Socialist State; 

• Pages 1351 to 1352. Personal record of the citizen Akran Elias, 
identified as a person linked to the detemdant Alan Phillip Gross. He 

. made nUmtlrous trips to Cuba and maintained a position markedly 
opposed to the Cuban Socialist State. The defendant met with him at the 
Hotel Nacional one day before his arrest with the intention to expand 
the subversiveprojec:t to the Cuban Freemason institutions, 

• Page 1353. Personal record of the citizen John Herzog, identified as the 
manager of contracts in the DAland a person with whom the defendant 
Alan Phillip Gross kept in touch. 

e. Page 1354, Re~ume of the citizen Crista Jones Baptista, identified as a 
.. ·DAI expert.and.the person that the defendant Alan Phillip Gross ---'""-

address the reports to on his activities in Cuba, 
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• Page 1355. Resume of Debra (~ish, identified by th~ d~fendant ~l~n 
Phillip Gross as the person appomted by the DAI to check on his v.OIk 

in Cuba. . 
• Pages 1368 to 1438. A photo and ehart sh~)\:in~ the means Illegally 

introduced in Cuba by the defendant Alan PhillIp (JfOSS. 

C) Testimollial,according to the ~ist included to testify on authors, 
events or circumstances, requestmg a subpoena to be served to these 
persons, 

D) Expeitise, requesting a subpoena t~ be served to the ~xperts whose 
names are called in the enclosed list for them to raufy, amend or 
expand the reports contained in Volumes I, II, IV and V of the file 
consisting in: 

VOLUME I 

• Page 106,· Criminalistic§; Analysis in documentology on the 
. graphologieaLexanJ.ination performed in docuI]lents handwritten by the 
.·defendiu:1t Alan Ehillip Gross shOwing characteristics of his personality 

and the dOl,'ltimentoiogical analysis practiced onUS passport 208021249, 
owned by the defendant, establishing its authenticity. 

• Pages 117 to 130, Compendium of legal rules from the Ministry of 
Information and Communications regulating the use of communications 
equipment in the national territory, produced by lawyer Zenaida 
Marrero Ponce de Le6n, a Legal AdViser with that ministry. 

• Pages 132 to 140. Certif1catioll• and compend,iunl of legal rules from 
the General Customs of the Republicproduccdbv MSc C M·' 
de los Reyes Ramos on the re 1;. . ••. . . , armen ana 
country of the means relevant~Uihll()ns, COnCeffilUg the 11llportation to the 

• Pages 184 to 185· C. .' 0.. e. pwcess. 
. nm llIaJ , ,t' recovery of data fr .ISICS Informat' 

defendant at th om the Kin~ston thumb . dr~on AnalYSis on the 
.doc formatsh~wrr:oment of his.arrest, "~here:i we Confiscated to the 
and E, KeU; Hart:n

the autho~sfQ be the def~ files were found in the 
Inc, and BAB SYS1'E~ the org~IZations J.eDCn~~t Alan Phillip Gross 
Cabral USAID d ' where It can be d > Gross & Com , an DAr. rea John Herzog M' pany, 

, r. ,..1nt011l0 

VOLUME II 

• Pages 305 to 314 D 
siO"" t ... " . OCllmcntOj ... 

.... a uresorlginated with til d. ogy Analysis of handwritt 
some ofthe.activj't· . h e efen. dant where h en les e Was ' l' e . . 

ll1Vo ved In associated with .•. 
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• Pages 322 to 335. Experts Ruling on the deployment and unc~:c~ed 
use of SGAN terminals, WiFi wireless accesS networks and access~nes, 

d their inteoration into private unauthorized networks I? thc natl?nal 
~~rritOry by :ngineers Mois6s Cortes Escobar and W!lfrc~o ~,opez 
R driguez Senior expert and Director of Rules and RegulatIons from o , . . 
the Ministry ofInfonllation and Commul1lCatlOlls.• . .... 

• Pages 435 of VOLUME n to page 666 of VOLUME III C~I~mahStIcs 
Information Analysis of the technical condition, capabilIty for use 
and data l'ecoverypracticed on the Kingston and Micro Cente: thumb 
drives confiscated to the defendant the day of his arrest from which data 
files were recovered that can be found in AI1!leXeS I to VII and that offer 
clear evidence of the defendant's activities related to the USAID Cuba 
Program such as the "For the Island' Project, designed by the 
defendant, as well as the document he labeled "How to communicate 
sa/ely in repressive environments. " 

VOLUME IV 

•. Pages 771 to. 783. Cri.minaIistics Information Analysis 011 the 
technical condition, suitable for risc, identification and examination 
of devices practiced on 5 access points, 2 routers, 1 radio frequency 
modulator, 2 CLARISYS phones, 1 webcam and 1 switch all of which 
were introduced in the country by the defendant and set up by him in the 
Council ofth~ Hebrew Community in Havana. 

• Pages 784 to 796. Criminalistics Information Analysis on the 
technical condition, suitable for use, disclosure and. recovery of data 
practiced on 3 Ipods, 1 thunib drive, 2 extemal hard drives and 1 photo 
camera set up or delivered by the defendant in the Council of the 
Hebrew Community in Havana. 

• Pages 797 to 806 ... Critninalistics Information Analysis on the 
technicalcon4ition, suitable fOl" use, disclosure and recovery of data 
practiced on :3 BGAN terminals confiscated to witness WilIiillll Miller 
Espinosa in the Council of the Hebrew Community in Havana that the 
defendant had installed both there and in the cities of Santiago de Cuba 
and Camaguey. It was cOllfinlled that two of them had been in 
operation while another one, classified as E5 during the experts 
analysis, was in poor technical condition and non operational. 

• Pages 807 to 892. Criminalistics Information Analysis on the 
technical. condition, suitable fOI" use, disclosul'e and recovery of data;;. , .. 
practiced OIl the portable microcomputer trademark Apple, contisc!!):eg;~";; 
to witness William Miller Espinosa at the Council of the.H<;Rv~;:>: '-' 
Community in Havana, where it had been installed by th~ .. defeti¢ailfiis\'''e,:'i ~¥ ___ 
part of his program, and which revealed 75 pages of data in;cfudeq irt"'-~..,.,-'4-~ 
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Annexes I and II. The analvsis showed that it was ready for use and tl1<lt 
it contained numerous fiies with documents, both in Spanish and 
English, describing the operations and correct use of the state~of-the-art 
means of communication introduced in the country by the defendant and 
protected by passwords, files that expose the existence of the program 
created by the defendant and named by him "For the Island." 

• Pages 893 to 936.Criminalistics Iuformation Analysis on the 
technical condition, capability for use, identification and 
examination of devices, disclosure and recovery of data practiced on 
3 Smart Blackberry .phones confiscated to witness William Miller 
Espinosa at the Council of the Hebrew Community in Havana, delivered 
by the defendant as part of his program, that expose the data included in 
Annexes I, II,. III and VI showing that the equipment was fit tor use, and 
that it offered multiple possibilities such as global positioning services, 
photo camera, data trausmission and reception, emails and Internet 
navigation. 

• Pages 937 to 988 Criminalistics lnformation Analysis on the 
te.chnical condition, suitable for use, identification and examination 
Of devices,disclosure and recovery of data practiced on 2 Smart 
Blackberry phones confiscated to witness William Miller Espinosa at 
the Council of the Hebrew Community in Havana delivered by the 
defendant as part of his program that expose pages of data included in 
Annexes I, Hand III showing that the equipment was fit for use, and 
that it otferedmultiple possibilities such as global positioning services, 
photo camera, data transmission· and reception, emails and Internet 
navigation. It could be established the presence in them of text formats 

.. referring to the USAID, as well as photos proving the implementation of 
. the OOml11unications networks, a fotm with the Curriculum Vitae of the 
defendant Alan Phillip Gross and a list of the countries where he has 
worked. 

.• Pages. 9.89· t() . .1 003. . Criminalistics Information Analysis on the 
technical condition, suitable for use, disclosure and recovery of data 
practiced on 3, Ipods, 2 thumb drives and 2 external hard drives 
confiscated at. the Council of the Hebrew Community in Camaguey, 
where it had l;ieen delivered by the defendant Alan Phillip Gross. The 2 
thumb drives identified for the experts analysis as Ell and E 12 exposed 
a PDF document entitled "For the Island Training Guide.pdf." 

• Pages 1004 to 1013 Crimhudist.ics Information Analysis on the 
techl"!ical condition, suitabl~ for lise, disclosure and recovery of data ",,,,~ 
practIced on an Apple mIcrocomputer confiscated at the HcbrJ.':.w,,";"'""" \\l, 
Co.m.munity in Camaguey, where it was delivered by the de~~~""".t ' .. '.. \'. 
PhIllip Gro?s: showe~ amon~ others a PDF docUl11ent~~~~~';':%;)'i(\, 
Island Trammg GUlde.pdf' handbooks on the &~rati~9£'~i!'.J ',.-s:""Y ~. 
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information and communications equipment and images of the people 
who used the devices installed. 

VOLUME V 

• Pages 1015 to '1026. Criminalistics Information Analysis on the 
technkalcondition, suitable for use, disclosure and recovery of data 
practiced on 6 wireless points of access, 2 wireless routers, 1 mouse, 1 
webcam, 1 telephone with OSBcolmeetion and 1 switch delivered by 
the defendant Alan Phillip Gross and contiseated to witness David 
Pemas Levy at the Hebrew Community in Camaguey. This analysis 
permitted to establish that the wireless router has numerous possibilities 
such as sharing an exclusive connection to Internet. Likewise, the 
switch has great possibilities such as advanced commutation and the 
forwarding of packages that maximizc data transfer. All of the 
equipment makes possible the configuration of a highly reliable 
network. 

• Pages 1027 to 1043. Criminal.istics Information Analysis on the 
technical condition, .suitable for use, identification and examination 
of devices, discloSure and recovery of data practiced 011 4 Blackben'y 
smart phoneslmdthree chargers delivered by the defendant Alan Phillip 
Gross and confl,scated to witness David Pemas Levy at the Hebrew 
CommullityinCamaguey that show they were tit tor use and multiple 
functions such as global positioning services, photo camera, data 
transmission and reception, e;mails and Internet navigation. 

• Pages 1044 to 1.052. Criillinalistics Information Analysis on the 
tecbnicalcolldition, suitable for use, disclosure and recovery of data 
practiced on 2 lpods and two extemal hard drives delivered by the 
defendant Alan Phillip Gross and confiscated to witness Eugenia F arin 
Levy at the Hebrew Community in Santiago de Cuba, that showed they 
were fitfor use. 

• Pages 1053 tol08(). Criminalistics Information Analysis on the 
technica(con4ition, suitable for use, disclosure and recovery of data 
practiced Ii>l"\ao Apple computer delivered by the defendant Alan Phillip 

. Gross and confiscated to witness Eugenia Farin Levy at the Hebrew 

. Community. in Santiago de Cuba, showing that it was fit for use. The 
computer. registers as user JBDCPLIMB2 and exposes phone numbers 

. registered to OFAC as wel! as records of chats between the users 
apgross and. john.Hersog97, in addition to numerous tiles with .jpg 
extensionofil11ages showing the equipment and the defendant with the 

. recipients aswell as the installation of a BGAN. "' .. ,/ 
'. Pages 1081 to 1089. Criminalistics Information Analysis I?ll, .. ,th,e,," 

technical condition, suitable for use, identification and ~anijn:atfbh::;'. ," 
,_1:' ~~~~E:;:0:'1 " .. ~' 
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of devices practiced on one wireless router and switch, 3 wireless access 
points, hands-free devices and one wireless network adaptor delivered 
by the defendant Alan Phillip Gross and confiscated to witness Eugenia 
Farin Levy at the Hebrew Community center in Santiago de Cuba, 
showing they were fit for use and demonstrating their multiple 
possibilities such as shared access to Internet, voice, video and data 
traffic that avoid unwanted interference 1md allow encryption of the 
information forwarded. 

• Pages 1090. toll 0.5. Criminalistics Information Analysis on the 
technical condition, suitable for use, identification and cxanlinutioll 
of. devices, discJ.osllre and rec.overy of data practiced on 3 smart 
Blackberry .phOlies delivered by the defendant Alan Phillip Gross and 
confiscated to witness Eugenia Farin Levy at the Hebrew Community 
center in Santiago de Cuba, showing that they were fit tor use and had 
multiple possibil~ties such as. global positioning services, photo camera, 
data transmissiqnand receptioh, emails and Internet navigation. 

• Pages 1107 to 1130. Expert's Report elaborated by Dr. Manuel Hevia 
. Frasquieri, a researcher and expert from the State Security Study Center, 
entitled "The USAID: A Key Weapon in the Dirty War," offering a 
detailed analysis of the missions of that US government agency against 
the Cuban State. 

LIST OF WITNESES 

I. William Miite):" Espinosa living at Calle Fortuna numero Dosciento$ 
Setenta entre Ronda Norte y Mayari, Reparto Alturas del Rosario, 
municipio Airoyo Naranjo, La Habana. To declare on the way he 
met the defendan:t, who introduced them, the defendants' contacts, 
the eqUipment delivered, his visits to the synagogue, the installation 
of the equipment, and his visits to the provinces of Santiago de Cuba 
and Camaguey. 

2. Jeiro Montagne Bahani Hving at cane Neptuno numero Seiscientos 
Veinticuatro, Segundo piso entre Gervasio y Escobar, municipio 
Centro Habaha. To declare on the reasons tor which he met the 
defendant,their relatio):18, the infonnation that the defendant 
requestedfrolll him and the equipment brought and its use. 

3. Fernando Cheong Cisnar, whose identity card shows the address 
CalleCincuenta y Side numero Diez Mil Trece entre Cien y Ciento 
Dos, butwho currently lives in Noventa y Cuatro numero Cuatro Mil 
Ciento Veinte, apartamento B entre Cuarenta y {Jno B y Cuarenta y_"\ 
Tres, muniCipio Marianao. To testify on the installation and use of 't:, 
the equipment delivered by the defendant in the Hebrew Comm~t("1A~ ." "~.. ! 

\ 

~ 1l.J ,~.":;·,,,5',k') 
~~ ,,,, 1o\\·"ij1'"*T~"'" 

~i .ti"it.~j. ""!~ 
oiIf!f'd. "" y. ':" .. ~~;~J:.~i' lr ~r',; y~ ',1- ...,,",~ , 0 ;,,~ 

\~,'" \ ...... ~ ... 
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4. Eugenia Farin Levy living in San Felix, numero Dosdentos Diez, 
entre Mateo y Maceo, Santiago de Cuba. 'ro testify on the way the 
defendant made contact with her as well as the equipment he 
delivered and his actiVities. 

5. David Budegen Faria living in San Felix, nllmero Trescientos 
Doce, entre Habana Y Trini(hld, Santiago de Cuba. To testifY on what 
he learned about thedetendant's visits to Santiago de Cuba and the 
information and communications means he delivered. 

6. EnmaFarin Levy living in San Felix, numero Trescientos Doce, 
entre Hahana y Trinidad, Santiago de Cuba, To testify on the 
defendant's visits to the synagogue in Santiago de Cuba and the 
equipment he delivered to that center. 

7; David Pernas Levy Hving in Calle Santa Rosa nlunero Noventa y 
Uno esquiriaSan Jose, muniqipio Camagiiey. Ciudad de Camaglley. 
To testifY.on the way he met the defendant, the equipment he 
delivered and the use given to it. 

8. Diana Maria Marrel'o Basulto living in Calle Pobre numero 
Seiscientos Veintinueve entre San Esteban y San Martin, Reparto 
Centro de Ciudad, municipio Camagiiey, Ciudad de Camaguey. To 
testifY on the reasons for which she met the defendant and the 
equipment he brought. 

9. Jose Manuel Conera Vento living at edificio 39, modulo D, 
apartamento. 7, Villa Panamericana, Habana del Este, Ciudad de La 
Habana. To declare on the way he met the defendant Alan Phillip 
Gross, who . introduced theJill and his connection with Marc 
Wachterihe~m, director of P ADF as well as the plans of this 
organiz8tiohand other US government agencies against Cuba. 

10. Raul Antonio Capote Fernandez living in calle 4, numero 304, 
entre 13 y 15, Municipio Plaza, Ciudad de La Habana. To explain his 
relations. with Marc Wachtenheim. the BGAN satellite 
communication equipment he received, how he received it, the use 
he gave it a,nd the instnlctions he received for its use, as well as the 
concrete activities he conducted, their objectives and his motives, 

11. LieuteilantColonel Carlos. Remis Chong, an investigation officer 
. with the DCSE, who should declare on the investigations conducted 
for thefHeljl1d to modifY, ratifY or expand on the conclusive report 
he issue40fthe Preparatory File, 

LIST OF ExPElffS 

. 1, Lieuteml.lltColonel Marlene Lopez Capote, a criminalistics eXl,et;t., •• ~; 
in documentology with the Central Laboratory of 
ratifY, modify or expand on tbegraphological analysis S~4!)el 
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of documents handwritten by the defendant and the documentology 
analysis of US passport 208021249 owned by the defendant. Pages 
106 and from 108 to 110. And the documentology analysis of the 
handwritten texts and signatures showed in pages 305 to 314. 

2. Lieutenant Alexis Cl'"UZ Fleitas, Sub Lieutenant Rogelio 
Rodriguez Sampel'", Sub Lieutenant Javier Gutierrez Elejaga and 
Captain Ramses Dupuy Mercader, experts with the Central 
Laboratory of Criminalistics who conducted the criminalistics 
Information analysis on the technical condition, capability for use, 
disclosure and recovery of data £i'om the means introduced in the 
country by the defendant Alan Phillip Gross and contlscated both to 
him and to the Hebrew Coml11unities in Havana, Santiago de Cuba 
and Camaguey, to ratiry, modifY or expand on their reports. 

3. Lawyer Zenaida Marrero Ponce de Leon, Legal Director at the 
Ministry of Information and Communications, to explain the rules in 
force in Cuba concerning the use of satellite communications 
dictated by the Ministry of Information and Communications and 
enforced in the national territory, pages 117 to 130. 

4. MSc Carmen Maria de ios Reyes Ramos, Legal A1Tairs Director at 
the General Customs of the Republic, to explain the rules applied to 
the importation of satellite communication equipment in Cuba that 
she accredited in the file. 

5. Engineers Moises Cortes Escobar and Wilfl'cdo Lopez 
Rodriguez, Senior specialist and Director of Rules and Regulations 
at the Ministry of Infonnatioll and Communications, to provide a 
knowledgeable explanation of the rules in force in our country that 
regulate satellite comnlUrtication, just as they did in the ruling issued 
on the subject. 

6. Dr. Manu!!l Hevia Frasquieri, a researcher with the State Security 
Study . Cert~et, to present the ruling entitled "111e USAID: A Key 

. Weapon in the Dirty War," offering a detailed analysis of the 
fuissions of that US government agency against the Cuban State. 

La Habana,Cuba, Jallllary ;29, 2011 
• Humberto Gonzalez Figueroa . 
Prosec:utor 

Official Transla!ion· 
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